
1

Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes
Tuesday, September 28, 2004

Present: Selectman Maxfield, Kardaseski, and Bowles.
Also present: Police Chief, Code Enforcement/Compliance Officer Bob Fiske, Road
Agent David Rice, Fire Chief Jeff Burr, and Deputy Chief Rodney Phillips.

Chairman Maxfield called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM.

I. Selectman Bowles moved to approve the Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes of
Tuesday, September 21, 2004 as printed. Seconded by Selectman Kardaseski.
All in favor. Motion carried.

II. The Board met with Police Chief, Code Enforcement/Compliance Officer Bob
Fiske.
a. Mr. Fiske discussed a compliance issue regarding Kendall Perkins’

property on Kenney Road. The Board stated Mr. Perkins had until
October 1, 2004 to come into compliance. The Board said to proceed with
legal action.

b. Mr. Fiske inquired about Ed Wlodyka’s property on School Street relative
to building a replacement home on his property while residing in the
existing home. Chairman Maxfield stated that the Selectmen sent Mr.
Wlodyka a letter advising him the attorney was advised to not move
forward with processing the agreement as Mr. Wlodyka did not have a
building permit and there were none available. The Board is meeting with
Mr. Wlodyka next week to discuss this issue. The Board stated when Mr.
Wlodyka approached them regarding this issue it was the first case they
were dealing with and unfortunately a mistake was made regarding the
building permit issue. The process now in place is an agreement is to be
signed, a bond in place, and replacement building permit is to be obtained.
Selectman Bowles stated Town Counsel recommended not allowing two
homes on one lot; however, the Selectmen felt it was in the best interest of
the Town to work with the residents as long as the agreement and bond
were in place. He stated he felt the Board needed to keep trying to work
with the people.

c. Mr. Fiske advised the Board he had spoken with Mr. Doug Daniels. Mr.
Daniels has been in contact with the Zoning Board Secretary regarding an
application for next month’s Zoning Board meeting. Discussion ensued.

d. Mr. Fiske asked for clarification regarding the Board’s decision to not
issue driveway permits for the “Wellington Properties” subdivision off
Chichester Road (Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes, 9/21/04, paragraph II,
b.). Mr. Fiske’s question is regarding the building permit application and
building permit waiting list. Discussion ensued regarding the requirement

AcroPDF - A Quality PDF Writer and PDF Converter to create PDF files. To remove the line, buy a license.

http://www.acropdf.com


2

of obtaining a driveway permit in order to be on the building permit
waiting list. The Board stated Mr. Fiske could allow Wellington
Properties to be placed on the 2006 building permit waiting list with a
notation clearly stating the Board has the right to revoke the permits if
substantial work has not been completed on the road at the time the
permits are to be issued. Mr. Tom McCue stated the idea of revoking the
permit if the developer has not met the requirements is consistent with the
Planning Board having the right to revoke subdivision approval, if after a
certain amount of time, there has been no activity.

e. Mr. Fiske discussed the “COW” towers at Sunny Side Maples. He told
the Board a representative from Verizon will be forwarding a request for
an extension of a “COW” tower until December 31, 2004. The Board
agreed that the Verizon “COW” tower could remain until December 31,
2004. It was generally felt that the tower at NHIS would be completed
before then. As Verizon will be on that tower, there will be no further
need for the “COW.”

f. Mr. Fiske discussed the construction taking place at the Brookside Mall
property. He stated the Conservation Commission had concerns regarding
the wetlands issues. Mr. Fiske stated that the 75-foot buffer refers to
subdivisions, not existing lots. He also advised the Board the State has
inspected the project and did not appear to have any problems with what
has taken place.

g. Mr. Fiske inquired what the status is for Donna and Dana Miles bond and
agreement. The Board stated Mr. and Mrs. Miles have not provided the
bond nor have they signed the agreement.

h. Mr. Fiske discussed Currier Road relative to the road issues and ESMI.
Discussion ensued regarding the road and culvert. Road Agent David
Rice stated he had inspected the culvert and it has not been crushed as
previously thought. He stated it is still round and feels it may be moving
up and down due to the sand.

i. Mr. Fiske advised the Board David Moody’s gravel pit will be discussed
at next month’s Planning Board meeting.

j. Chairman Maxfield stated for the record three pistol permits were
submitted for signature and approval.

k. Discussion ensued regarding the Police Department billing for the Nextel
race event. Mr. Fiske explained the “cruisers” portion of the bill was to
cover the out-of-town cruisers needed for coverage. He also explained the
“water” portion was reimbursement for the bottled water supplied to the
Officers during their shift.

l. Chairman Maxfield advised Mr. Fiske that he would be contacting Scott
Weden of The Local Government Center to review the new fair labor
standards act relative to exempt employees. He stated he would meet with
Mr. Weden to review Mr. Fiske’s file to understand how the new laws
may affect his position. Selectman Bowles stated he wanted to attend this
meeting. Chairman Maxfield stated he would setup the meeting and

AcroPDF - A Quality PDF Writer and PDF Converter to create PDF files. To remove the line, buy a license.

http://www.acropdf.com


3

advise the other Selectmen of the date and time. Mr. Fiske asked if he
could be in attendance at that meeting. Chairman Maxfield said, yes.

III. The Board met with Road Agent David Rice.
a. Mr. Rice advised the Board that he had checked out the Town Pound and

there are some large rocks that need to be set back on the wall. He stated
they will need to use the excavator, but he feels it can be done. Selectman
Bowles inquired if the Highway Crew would have any time to fix it or
should the Board look for other options. Mr. Rice stated the Highway
Crew could do it, he just wasn’t sure when.

b. Mr. Rice advised the Board they would be screening the sand next week,
grading is ongoing, and the air conditioners will be removed and put away
at the Town Office Building.

c. Mr. Rice discussed the turn-a-round on Flagg Road.

IV. The Board met with Fire Chief Jeff Burr and Deputy Chief Rodney Phillips.
a. Discussion ensued regarding the Fire Department’s request for Knox

Boxes. Selectman Kardaseski inquired what the status of the alarm system
for the Community Building was. She was advised it was all set.
Selectman Kardaseski inquired who would be making the arrangements to
get the holes in the Community Building wall fixed. Chairman Maxfield
suggested contacting Kim Bean. Selectman Bowles inquired if the
bathroom ceiling had been fixed. Chairman Maxfield suggested taking the
money out of the Building Maintenance Fund for these repairs.

V. The Board began their review of weekly correspondence.
a. Chairman Maxfield advised the Department Heads in attendance the

Selectmen had a memo regarding budget preparation with a November 10
deadline.

b. Selectman Bowles moved to authorize the Chairman to co-sign the
Horizon Engineer Services Preliminary Engineering Study – Freedom Hill
Cooperative – Town of Loudon. Seconded by Selectman Kardaseski. All
in favor. Motion carried.

c. Chairman Maxfield stated he had a request to purchase two sets of the
Loudon Bicentennial Coins. He stated there are 25 bronze and 65 pewter
unnumbered coins remaining. Based on the 1987 Town Report, the
bronze coins were to sell for $5.00, and the pewter coins to sell for $10.00
each. Chairman Maxfield inquired if the Board wanted to reserve any of
the remaining coins. Selectman Kardaseski stated she felt if the Historical
Society had a set of each, the remaining coins could be sold. Chairman
Maxfield moved to sell Gerald Drew 2 pewter Bicentennial Town of
Loudon Coins at a cost of $10.00 each and 2 bronze Bicentennial Town of
Loudon Coins at a cost of $5.00 each. Seconded by Selectman
Kardaseski. All in favor. Motion carried.

d. Discussion ensued regarding the Recreation Facilities Maintenance Fund.
Chairman Maxfield stated this is an expendable trust and allows the

AcroPDF - A Quality PDF Writer and PDF Converter to create PDF files. To remove the line, buy a license.

http://www.acropdf.com


4

Selectmen to withdraw both principal and interest. Discussion ensued.
Selectman Bowles inquired about the winter maintenance of the irrigation
system at the Staniels Road Ball Fields. A representative from LYAA will
be contacted.

e. The Board received an inquiry from the J.O. Cate Memorial Van
Committee asking for the Board’s opinion on having someone volunteer
from another Town volunteer to drive. Discussion ensued regarding
concerns of background checks and traveling to pick up volunteers outside
of Loudon. The general consensus of the Board was that, although the
Board appreciates the offer, they are more comfortable having volunteers
be residents of Loudon. Chairman Maxfield will contact Ms. Cameron
with the Board’s decision.

f. The Board was advised the representative of Shirley Waters’ subdivision
has inquired what they need to do to get the shared driveway accepted.
The Board received copies of RSA 231:133 regarding street names and
911 regulations. Discussion ensued regarding properties in Town having
mail boxes at the end of a driveway with the house being off the road.
The Board will review this information and discuss it at next week’s
meeting.

g. The Board received a memo from Tony Puntin regarding Foster Road.
h. The Board discussed Cross Brook Road and Bee Hole Road. Selectman

Kardaseski stated a maintenance bond and petition to accept the road
needs to be received for both of these roads.

i. The Board received copies of 3 compliance letters from Bob Fiske.
j. Chairman Maxfield discussed RSA 95-1. He stated as Chairman it is his

obligation to insure all public officials are in compliance with their roles
as public officials. He went on to ask the Board to listen, review, and
share information, to analyze the facts and details. He stated the Board
does not need to rule or resolve anything tonight, that they should take
their time. Chairman Maxfield stated the one issue relative to the Old
Home Day Committee needs more research. Chairman Maxfield stated he
has received allegations from citizens of Loudon concerning possible RSA
95-1 irregularities. He said RSA 95-1 reads in part: “Public Officials are
prohibited from making a contract with the Municipality they serve if the
value of the contract is more than $200.00 in goods and services unless the
contract is open to competitive bidding.” Chairman Maxfield stated the
allegations are pertaining to both the Loudon Old Home Day Committee
and the Loudon Communications Council. After reviewing the
allegations with the Town Attorney, he advised that “once the Board
becomes aware of any possible irregularities they must act on it
expeditiously and bring it to a resolution.” Chairman Maxfield stated he
assumes that both the Old Home Day Committee and the Loudon
Communications Council have their own by-laws and were separate
entities. He emphasized separate entities which did not constitute a
governmental organization of the Town. He stated an example of a
separate entity or private entity that receives Town funds is the Visiting

AcroPDF - A Quality PDF Writer and PDF Converter to create PDF files. To remove the line, buy a license.

http://www.acropdf.com


5

Nurses Association. The Town gives the VNA $4,250.00 per year and has
no further control of the funds or functions of the association. He stated
the Communication Counsel does have its own by-laws. Chairman
Maxfield read the March 14, 1998 Town Meeting Minutes relative to
Article #19. “To see if the Town will vote to establish the Loudon
Communications Council as a permanent Town of Loudon organization.”
He stated he also had a letter from the Town Attorney dated July 8, 1998,
which in part reads: “The Town has voted to establish the organization and
the Board should take whatever steps are necessary to implement that vote
and to protect the Town’s interests. The minutes of the Town Meeting
indicate that the Council will be a permanent organization of the Town.”
Chairman Maxfield stated the Loudon Communication Council is a
governmental organization of and within the municipality, it falls under
RSA 95-1 open to competitive bidding and is also required to be audited,
which it has never been. He stated this oversight would be corrected
immediately. Chairman Maxfield stated there needed to be more research
regarding the creation of the Old Home Day Committee, he has not
located any warrant article, no Selectmen’s Minutes signifying
appointments, no by-laws, no minutes of the Old Home Day Committee
and he questions if the Old Home Day Committee is a governmental
organization within the municipality, and stated he needs more time to
research these questions.
Selectman Kardaseski stated that she finds it interesting that after working
with the Loudon Communications Council for 7 years, working on the Old
Home Day Committee for 7 or 8 years this has suddenly become an issue
at this time. She stated that this is directed at her personally, and it
precludes her from making a living within the Town of Loudon. She
stated the Loudon Communications Council did put the layout of the
Loudon Ledger out to bid; she is not a director of the LCC as directors are
not allowed to receive any remuneration. She went on to say the Old
Home Day Committee has had the opportunity to find someone else to do
the layout of their book. They chose not to. She stated this is a personal
attack and if it comes down to the choice of being a Selectman serving the
Town of Loudon and making a living, she would resign as Selectman.
Selectman Kardaseski stated she was very upset that Chairman Maxfield
felt he needed to go to the Town Attorney before discussing these issues
with her. Chairman Maxfield stated this was not personal, it was a public
official and it’s just an issue of law and when you receive several
allegations you cannot just brush them off, you have to take action as
Selectmen. Selectman Kardaseski asked why it had taken seven years.
She also asked Chairman Maxfield if he wanted her resignation stating
that if she couldn’t make a living, she could not stay a Selectman.
Chairman Maxfield said no, that if everything is in compliance, or can
become compliant there’s absolutely no problem with what has been done.
He stated he wanted to discuss it, review it, share information, and get
answers and that is his goal. Selectman Kardaseski stated she felt he could

AcroPDF - A Quality PDF Writer and PDF Converter to create PDF files. To remove the line, buy a license.

http://www.acropdf.com


6

have asked some of the questions before he went to see the Town
Attorney. Chairman Maxfield said when you get allegations you have to
check out the law. He stated the Board could not go into a non-public
session under the statute he is discussing it now. Chairman Maxfield
stated he did not discuss this issue with Selectman Bowles as he wanted
there to be no bias. He stated the allegation was mainly with regard to the
Old Home Day Committee and then the Communications Counsel issue
was discussed. Selectman Kardaseski stated the Town Report was
probably mentioned also. She stated there has always been a bid process
and she has always recused herself from that process and the
Communications Counsel put their job out to bid.
Attorney Tom McCue was recognized from the audience. Attorney
McCue stated he represents the Loudon Communications Counsel and was
concerned that this issue has come up. He stated he would be contacting
Town Counsel regarding this issue. Attorney McCue inquired if the
determination of the governmental organization was made with the
information that the LCC has an employer identification number and that
the LCC has the 501C-3 status. Attorney McCue advised the Board any
further discussion regarding this issue needs to go through his office.
Selectman Bowles stated he would have asked the person making the
complaint to come in and talk with the Board. He stated he understood as
Chairman, Chairman Maxfield had certain responsibilities; however, he
feels the best way to serve the people of the Community is to have them
come in and talk to the Board if they have a problem. Chairman Maxfield
stated this is going to be resolved openly. The LCC went out to bid,
which resolves that issue, the Old Home Day Committee still needs to be
researched. Chairman Maxfield went on to explain this process was the
one he felt he wanted to take. Selectman Kardaseski stated she felt the
timing was interesting. Selectman Bowles inquired if Chairman Maxfield
had received anything in writing from his conversation with Attorney
Mayer. Selectman Kardaseski stated she wanted to see something in
writing also. She stated the only resolution for the person who has
brought this allegation forward would be for her to no longer do this work.
She went on to say that if anyone felt she was taking advantage of her
position as a Selectman to do this work does not know what they are
talking about. Chairman Maxfield stated it seems very clear that there is
no conflict with the Communications Counsel. Selectman Kardaseski
stated there should be no problem with any of it. She stated it is very
unfortunate that one cannot serve the Town and make a living at the same
time.

k. Chairman Maxfield stated the Town is in receipt of a Certificate of
Deposit from Ken Berwick in the amount of $13,125.00. The Treasurer
has the information she needs. Chairman Maxfield signed the Intent to
Excavate. Mr. Fiske inquired about the map for this operation. Selectmen
Kardaseski and Bowles stated they have seen the map with the diagonal

AcroPDF - A Quality PDF Writer and PDF Converter to create PDF files. To remove the line, buy a license.

http://www.acropdf.com


7

line drawn through it by the Court. Chairman Maxfield stated Mary
Pinkham-Langer has addressed the 155-E permit.

l. Barbara Cameron was recognized from the audience. She was advised the
Board had decided against utilizing volunteers from out of Town for the
J.O. Cate Van.

Selectman Bowles moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:36 PM. Seconded by Selectman
Kardaseski. All in favor. Meeting adjourned.

THE LOUDON BOARD OF SELECTMEN

____________________________________
Roger A. Maxfield, Chairman

____________________________________
Deborah A. Kardaseski, Selectman

____________________________________
Dustin J. Bowles, Selectman

AcroPDF - A Quality PDF Writer and PDF Converter to create PDF files. To remove the line, buy a license.

http://www.acropdf.com

